
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HUMBLE CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING PACKET 

JANUARY 9, 2014  



 
Mayor 
Donald M
City Man
Darrell Bo
City Secr
Jason Stu
 

C
 

1. In
 

2. M
 

3. F
 

4. C

5. P

6. R
lo

7. R
te
S
th

8. R
te
W

9. O
pr
 

10. M
 

McMannes 
nager 
oeske 
retary 
ebe 

Call to order.

nvocation an

Minutes – De

inancial Stat

Current Invoi

resentation o

Request to a
ocated within

Request by 
emporarily c
treet on Jan

he railroad cr

Request by G
emporarily c

Willow Stree

Ordinance 14
roperty impr

Monthly Dep

Thu
City Hal

 

nd Pledge of 

ecember 12, 

tement. 

ices. 

of awards to

abandon a p
n the W.B. A

Union Pac
close the rai
uary 10, 20
rossing at R

G.W. Phillip
close all lane
t for seven (

4-728 encum
rovements to

partment Rep

Humbl
Regu

ursday, Janu
ll Council C

Hum

f Allegiance.

2013 Regula

o Christmas P

portion of a
Adams Surve

cific Railroa
ilroad crossi
14; the railro
ankin Road 

ps Concrete
es of traffic o
(7) calendar 

mbering fund
o be perform

ports. 

 
 

 
Agenda 
le City Coun
ular Meetin
uary 9, 2014

Chamber, 11
mble, Texas

 

 

ar Meeting.

 
Parade and C

 
an existing 
ey, Abstract 

 
ad through 
ing at Main
oad crossing
on January 7

 
e Constructi
on South Ho
days during 

 
ds budgeted

med during F

ncil 
g 
4 6:30 P.M.
14 West Hig
s 

Christmas Li

40 foot wi
 No. 95, Har

Road Safe
n Street  and
g at Higgins
7 and 8, 201

ion through 
ouston Aven
the month o

d in Fiscal Y
Fiscal Year 2

C
A
R
M
A
 
 

. 
ggins 

ighting Cont

de Right-Of
rris County, 

e Traffic S
d the railroa
s Street on J
4. 

HDR|Claun
nue between
of February a

Year 2012-2
2013-2014. 

Council Mem
Allan Steagal
Ray Calfee 
Merle Aaron
Andy Curry 

 

test winners

f-Way Ease
Texas.  

Systems, In
ad crossing 
January 11, 2

nch & Mill
n Issaks Road
as needed. 

2013 for spe

mbers  
l 

 

. 

ement 

nc. to 
at 1st 
2014; 

ler to 
d and 

ecific 



11. C
 

12. A
 
Notice is
will be h
West Hig
 
Posted th
 
 
 
  
City Secr
 
I, the und
the City 
correct c
and the C
to the ge
5:00 P.M
time of s
 
 
 
This pub
following
Dated thi
 
Subscrib
 
 
  
Notary P

 
 
 
 

Corresponden

Adjournment

s hereby give
held on Thur
ggins, Humb

his 6h day of 

 
retary 

dersigned, d
of Humble, 
opy of said 
City’s websi
neral public

M. and remai
aid meeting.

blic notice w
g date and ti
is   

ed and swor

 
Public – Harr

THIS FACI
ARE AVAIL
MUST BE M

SECRET

nce. 

t. 

en that a Re
rsday, Januar
ble, Texas.  T

f January 201

  

o hereby cer
Texas, is a t
notice on th
ite, www.cit
c at all times
ined so post
. 

was removed 
me:    

 day of  

rn to before m

  
ris County, T

ILITY IS WHE
LABLE.  REQ
MADE 48 HO
TARY’S OFFI

gular Meetin
ry 9th, 2014 
The followin

14 at 5:00 P.

 

rtify that the
true and cor

he bulletin bo
tyofhumble.c
s.  Said Noti
ted continuo

from the of

me on this th

 
Texas

EELCHAIR AC
QUESTS FOR A

URS PRIOR T
ICE AT (281) 4

IN

ng of the Cit
at 6:30 P.M

ng subjects w

M. 

e above Noti
rrect copy of
oard at City 
com.  The A
ice and Agen
ously for at l

fficial postin
  by 
 , 20

he  , day

 

 

CCESSIBLE A
ACCOMODA
TO THIS MEE
446-3061 OR F
NFORMATIO

ty Council o
M. at the City
will be discu

ice of Meetin
f said Notice
Hall, 114 W

Agenda and N
nda were po
least 72 hou

ng board at t
 

14 By 

y of  

AND ACCESS
ATIONS OR IN
ETING.  PLEA
FAX (281) 446

ON. 

of the City o
y Hall Counc
ussed, to wit:

ng of the Go
e and that I p

West Higgins
Notice are r

osted on Janu
urs proceedi

the Humble 
 
 

 

SIBLE PARKIN
NTERPRETIVE
ASE CONTACT
6-7843 FOR FU

of Humble, T
cil Chamber
 See Agenda

overning Bo
posted a tru
s, Humble, T
readily acces
uary 6th, 20
ng the sched

City Hall o
.  
 . 

, 2014. 

NG SPACES 
E SERVICES 
T THE CITY 
URTHER 

Texas 
r, 114 
a. 

ody of 
e and 
Texas 
ssible 

014 at 
duled 

on the 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

1-9-2014 

AGENDA ITEM #2 

 

MINUTES 

DECEMBER 12
TH

, 2013 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Minutes 12-12-2013 

HUMBLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

DECEMBER 12, 2013 – 6:30 P.M. 
 

HELD AT CITY HALL, 114 WEST HIGGINS, HUMBLE, TEXAS 
 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
   § 
COUNTY OF HARRIS § 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor Donnie McMannes, Presiding 
    Mayor Pro Tem Allan Steagall  
    Councilmember Merle Aaron 

Councilmember Ray Calfee 
    Councilmember Andy Curry 
    City Manager Darrell Boeske 
    City Secretary Jason Stuebe 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:  Councilmember Allen Lee 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Police Chief Gary Warman 
    Fire Chief Gary Outlaw 
    Director of Public Works Barry Brock 
    Finance Director Dixie Kellum 
    Assistant Finance Director Aimee Phillips 
            
VISITORS PRESENT:  Tom Broad 
    Norman Funderburk 
    Mary Lea Layton 
    Scott Brady 
    Mark Tullis 
    Juanita Steagall  
     

Mayor Donnie McMannes called the regular meeting of the Humble City Council to order with a 
quorum present at 6:30 P.M.   

 
1. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Councilmember Merle Aaron offered the invocation and Mayor McMannes led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 

2. MINUTES – NOVEMBER 14, 2013 
Minutes of the council meeting held November 14th were presented to the Mayor and 
Councilmembers for approval.  Upon a motion made by Councilmember Aaron, the City Council 



Minutes 12-12-2013 

voted five (5) for and none (0) opposed to approve the Minutes of November 14th, 2013 as printed 
and circulated.   
 

3. FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
The Financial Statement for November 2013 was presented to the Mayor and Councilmembers for 
approval.  Upon a motion made by Councilmember Curry, the City Council voted five (5) for and 
none (0) opposed to accept the Financial Statement for accounting purposes. 
 

4. CURRENT INVOICES 
Invoices were presented to the Mayor and Councilmembers for approval of payment. 
 
 Accounts Payable 
 General Fund    $   609,571.58 
 W/S Operating Fund   $   169,591.74 
 Special Revenue Fund   $     17,555.39 
 Red Light Camera Fund   $     61,236.42 
 Beautification Committee Fund  $       8,128.95 
 Projects    $   516,607.43 
 Total     $1,427,691.51 
 
 
Upon a motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Steagall, the City Council voted five (5) for and none (0) 
opposed to pay the invoices.  
 

5. SPECIAL PRESENTATION AND DONATION TO THE MEMORIAL HERMAN NORTHEAST HOSPITAL 
TRAUMA FUND FROM THE RED LIGHT CAMERA FUND. 
Upon a motion made by Councilmember Aaron, the City Council voted five (5) for and none (0) 
opposed to authorize the annual payment of $100,000 to the Memorial Herman Northeast Hospital 
Trauma Fund from the Red Light Camera Fund.    
 
Mayor McMannes presented the check to Mr. Tom Broad, Mr. Norman Funderburk, and Ms. Mary 
Lea Layton representing the Northeast Hospital Authority Board of Directors.   
 

6. APPROVAL OF BID AND BID ALTERNATES FOR THE PUBLIC WORKS, ANIMAL SHELTER AND POLICE 
DEPARTMENT ADDITIONS AND RENOVATIONS PROJECT TO BE AWARDED TO GTT CONSTRUCTION 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,795,700. 
City Manager Boeske stated that staff had been working on the design of this project for about a 
year and felt that the bid received from GTT was a good price.   
 
Upon a motion made by Councilmember Aaron, the City Council voted five (5) for and none (0) 
opposed to approve the bid and bid alternates for the Public Works, Animal Shelter and Police 
Department Additions and Renovations Project, awarding the contract to GTT Construction in the 
amount of $2,795,700. 
 

7. APPROVAL OF BID 13-09 FOR THE ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION OF TWO (2) STORAGE AND 
EQUIPMENT BUILDINGS AT THE CIVIC CENTER AND ARENA TO BE AWARDED TO EC 
CONSTRUCTION IN THE AMOUNT OF $79,436.00. 
City Manager Boeske asked for approval.  



Minutes 12-12-2013 

 
Upon a motion by Mayor McMannes, the City Council voted five (5) for and none (0) opposed to 
accept the bid from EC Construction in the amount of $79,436.00.     
 

8. APPROVAL OF BID 13-10 FOR THE PURCHASE OF MATERIALS FOR THE RODEO ARENA AND 
LIVESTOCK HOLDING AREAS TO BE AWARDED TO PRIEFERT MFG. IN THE AMOUNT OF $64,063.24. 
City Manager Boeske asked for approval. 
 
Upon a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steagall, the City Council voted five (5) for and none (0) opposed 
to accept the bid from Priefert Mfg. in the amount of $64,063.24. 
 

9. EXECUTIVE SESSION – PURSUANT TO §551.087 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE REGARDING 
ECONOMIC INCENTIVE NEGOTIATIONS. 
At 6:37 P.M. the regular meeting was recessed so the Council could meet in Executive Session. 
 
The regular session was called back to order by Mayor McMannes at 6:51 P.M.  No action was taken. 
 

10. MONTHLY DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
Mayor McMannes stated the department reports were for information 
 

11. CORRESPONDENCE 
Mayor McMannes stated the correspondence was for information 
 

12. There being no further business before the City Council, Mayor McMannes adjourned the Regular 
Meeting of the City Council at 6:51 P.M. on Thursday, December 12, 2013.   
 
 
        
             

       D.G. McMannes 
       Mayor 
 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
       
 Jason Stuebe 
 City Secretary 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

1-9-2014 

AGENDA ITEM #3 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Humble
Balance on Deposit, All Funds
For the Month of December 2013

General Fund:
Fiscal YTD 
Earnings

Balance as of 
12/31/2013

Cash 302.73$             3,542,263.13$          
Certificate of Deposit 5,931.30            3,387,602.23            
Treasury Bills and Other Investments 9,581.37            13,233,223.47          
Cash - METRO 426.09               9,221,361.03            
Certificate of Deposit - METRO 332.11               499,098.61               
Treasury Bills and Other Investments - METRO 2,529.80            6,492,543.25            
Total 19,103.40          36,376,091.72          

Water & Sewer Operating Fund:
Cash -                    3,928,739.97            
Certificate of Deposit 1,847.76            965,722.93               
Treasury Bills and Other Investments 3,755.02            1,747,602.75            
Total 5,602.78            6,642,065.65            

Photo Traffic Safety Fund:
Cash 84.34                 1,502,748.41            

Total 84.34                 1,502,748.41            

Hotel Tax Fund:
Cash -                    450,359.79               

Total -                    450,359.79               

Sewer Plant Construction Fund:
Cash -                    120,982.59               

Total -                    120,982.59               

Total All Funds:
Cash 813.16               18,766,454.92          
Certificate of Deposit 8,111.17            4,852,423.77            
Treasury Bills and Other Investments 15,866.19          21,473,369.47          
Total 24,790.52$       45,092,248.16$        



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

1-9-2013 

AGENDA ITEM #4 

 

CURRENT INVOICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 







































































 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

1-9-2014 

AGENDA ITEM #5 

 

SPECIAL PRESENTATION OF AWARDS FOR 

CHRISTMAS PARADE AND CHRISTMAS 

LIGHTING CONTEST 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

1-9-2014 

AGENDA ITEM #6 

 

REQUEST FOR PARTIAL ABANDONMENT OF 

RIGHT-OF-WAY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 
C:\1039\1039-91.8\PARCIAL CANCELATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY AND UTILITY EASEMENTS.DOCX 

PARTIAL CANCELATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY AND UTILITY EASEMENTS 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS §  
    § 
COUNTY OF HARRIS § 
 
 WHEREAS, on or about September 11, 1979, Joseph D. Jamail, Trustee, executed that 
certain Grant of Right-of-Way and Utility Easements (collectively, the “Right-of-Way 
Easement”) conveying to the City of Humble, a municipal corporation in Harris County, Texas, 
a right-of-way and easement recorded under County Clerk’s File No. H814878 in the Official 
Public Records of Real Property of Harris County, Texas.  This Right-of-Way Easement is 
shown on Exhibit A attached hereto, is identified as Burdom Drive and the Proposed Extension 
of Bender Avenue, and includes the easements along both sides of each right-of-way.  Burdom 
Drive is paved and is presently in use, providing vehicular access and utilities.  The Proposed 
Extension of Bender Avenue is unpaved, not in use for any purpose and is more fully described 
as a 0.8667 acre tract of land on Exhibit B attached hereto; 
 
 WHEREAS, The Abercrombie Company is the fee owner (the “Owner”) of 
approximately 81.2633 acres of land, more fully described on Exhibit C attached hereto (the 
“Owner’s Land”).  The Right-of-Way Easement, which includes the Proposed Extension of 
Bender Avenue, is located entirely on Owner’s Land; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Owner has requested and the City of Humble has agreed to cancel and 
abandon the portion of the Right-of-Way Easement identified as the Proposed Extension of 
Bender Avenue. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:  That for and in 
consideration of $10.00 and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged, the undersigned, being the present owner and holder of the 
Right-of-Way Easement, do by these presents RELEASE, RELINQUISH and ABANDON the 
said Proposed Extension of Bender Avenue and do further bargain, sell, release and forever 
quitclaim unto the said The Abercrombie Company, their respective successors and assigns, all 
of the right, title and interest of the undersigned in and to that certain tract or parcel of land 
described as 0.8667 acre on Exhibit B and depicted on Exhibit A attached hereto. 
 
 TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said Premises, together with all and singular the rights, 
privileges and appurtenances thereto in any manner belonging onto the said The Abercrombie 
Company, its respective successors and assigns, forever. 
 
 EXECUTED this ______ day of _______________, 2013. 
 

CITY OF HUMBLE 
 
 
By:       
Name:       



2 
 
C:\1039\1039-91.8\PARCIAL CANCELATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY AND UTILITY EASEMENTS.DOCX 

Title:       
 
STATE OF TEXAS  §  
    § 
COUNTY OF HARRIS § 
 
 This instrument was executed before me on this ___ day of ______________, 2013, by 
__________________, ________________________ of the City of Humble, a body politic. 
 
 

      
Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
 

  



3 
 
C:\1039\1039-91.8\PARCIAL CANCELATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY AND UTILITY EASEMENTS.DOCX 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
 
  



4 
 
C:\1039\1039-91.8\PARCIAL CANCELATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY AND UTILITY EASEMENTS.DOCX 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 
  



5 
 
C:\1039\1039-91.8\PARCIAL CANCELATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY AND UTILITY EASEMENTS.DOCX 

EXHIBIT C 
 
 
 
 
  



6 
 
C:\1039\1039-91.8\PARCIAL CANCELATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY AND UTILITY EASEMENTS.DOCX 

 
 
 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING  

1-9-2014 

AGENDA ITEM #7 

 

ROAD CLOSURE REQUEST BY UNION 

PACIFIC RAILROAD 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

1-9-2014 

AGENDA ITEM #8 

 

ROAD CLOSURE REQUEST BY G.W. PHILLIPS 

CONCRETE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 
 
 

COUNCIL MEETING 
1-9-2014 

AGENDA ITEM #9 
 

ORDINANCE 14-728 ENCUMBERING FUNDS 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF HUMBLE 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 14-728 
 

AN ORDINANCE ENCUMBERING FUNDS BUDGETED IN FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013 FOR 
SPECIFIC PROPERTY IMPROVEMENTS TO BE PERFORMED DURING FISCAL YEAR 2013-
2014 
 

WHEREAS, the governing body of the City of Humble, Texas adopted Ordinance 12-726 amending 
the Fiscal Year 2012-2013 Budget which included providing for property improvements 
at the Humble Civic Center; and 

 
WHEREAS, the property improvements at the Humble Civic Center was started and completed in 

December 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, the governing body of the City of Humble, Texas deems it a public necessity to 

encumber the following funds from the Fiscal Year 2012-2013 budget for specific 
property improvements, to be performed during Fiscal Year 2013-2014: 

 
 GENERAL FUND: 
 
  Civic Center: 
  Property Improvements (Lighting) 01-6926-15  $95,000.00 
 
 now therefore,   
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1.  That the afore mentioned funds be encumbered from the Fiscal Year 2012-2013 budget.  
 
SECTION 2. That this ordinance shall be effective immediately, upon passage. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this the 9th day of January, 2014. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
             
       D.G. McMannes 
       Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Jason Stuebe 
City Secretary 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

12-12-2013 

AGENDA ITEM #10 

 

MONTHLY DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 













































































































































 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

12-12-2013 

AGENDA ITEM #11 

 

CORRESPONDENCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

December 20, 2013 
Number 42 

 
 

INTERIM CHARGES ON PRIVACY RELEASED 
 

Lt. Governor Dewhurst continues to release interim charges to committees of the Texas Senate to 
study prior to the 2015 legislative session. City-related charges relating to the protection of 
privacy issued for the Senate Committee on State Affairs are reprinted below. TML will continue 
to monitor additional charges released by the Lt. Governor and the progress of each study. We 
can expect the remainder of the Texas Senate committee interim charges to be released within 
the next month. 
 
Surveillance:  Examine possible measures to protect the personal privacy of Texas residents 
from governmental and commercial surveillance, including: (1) any necessary limits on 
warrantless search and seizure of data from electronic devices and wireless providers, including 
digital content and geolocational data; (2) any necessary protections against non-consented video 
and audio recordings collected by private handheld and wearable mobile devices and other 
private surveillance; and (3) any necessary limits on warrantless monitoring of the physical 
location of individuals through the use of biometrics, RFID chips, facial recognition, or other 
technologies.  Examine related measures proposed or passed in other states. 
 
Personal Data Collection:  Review the types and scope of personal data collected by 
governmental and commercial entities and consider methods to minimize the government’s 
collection of data on its citizens. The study should include (1) whether sufficient protections 
exist for DNA samples and information, including whether there should be a prohibition on the 
creation of DNA databases, except for felons and sex offenders; (2) methods to protect the 
privacy of gun owners from aggregated purchasing pattern tracking; (3) mechanisms to ensure 
that private health care information is properly protected; and (4) ways to ensure that previously 
anonymous data is not improperly re-identified and marketed. Examine related measures 
proposed or passed in other states. 
 
Transparency in Data Collection:  Examine possible reforms designed to increase citizens’ 
ability to know what data is being collected about them by governmental and commercial entities 

1 
 



and with whom that data is being shared, including an analysis of consumer informed consent.  
Examine related measures proposed or passed in other states. 
 
 
RECENT OPEN GOVERNMENT DEVELOPMENTS IN THE 

THIRD COURT OF APPEALS 
 
The Austin Court of Appeals recently addressed open government issues in two separate cases 
involving governmental entities. The first case of interest is York v. Texas Guaranteed Student 
Loan Corp., 408 S.W.3d 677 (Tex. App.—Austin 2013).  This case involves the interplay 
between the Texas Public Information Act (PIA) and the Texas Open Meetings Act (TOMA). 
The Texas Guaranteed Student Loan Corporation (TGSL) is a public non-profit corporation that 
is subject to both the PIA and TOMA. In 2011, attorney Larry York submitted a PIA request to 
TGSL. TGSL sought a decision from the attorney general that it could withhold certain records. 
The attorney general concluded that TGSL must disclose virtually all of the records it sought to 
withhold. TGSL then filed suit against the attorney general, and York intervened seeking a 
declaratory judgment. The district court held that TGSL was required to disclose minutes from 
the open meetings of its board of directors; however, they could withhold certain documents that 
were attached to those minutes. TGSL appealed arguing that none of the records at issue were 
subject to disclosure. 
 
The Austin Court of Appeals concluded that the PIA exceptions do not limit an entity’s 
obligation under the TOMA to disclose its “minutes” when requested. Additionally, the TOMA 
does not define the term “minutes.” The court then states that the minutes—as well as the 
attachments to the minutes—fall within the definition of “minutes” and include exhibits that are 
referenced in and attached to the minutes. Therefore, the court held that TGSL must disclose to 
York its board meeting minutes, including any attachments or exhibits.  
 
The second case deals with an open records request for recordings from closed meetings. In Riley 
v. Commissioners Court of Blanco County, the Commissioners Court of Blanco County held 
three closed meetings to decide whether or not to purchase property in Johnson City, Texas. No. 
03-11-00276-CV, 2013 WL 2348272 (Tex. App.—Austin May 23, 2013). Following the 
meetings, the commissioners court adopted a resolution in an open meeting to authorize the 
purchase of the property. Subsequent to the passage of the resolution, the plaintiff, Tex Riley, 
filed an open records request asking for copies of the recordings of the three closed meetings. 
This request was denied. In response to the denial, Riley filed a lawsuit against the 
commissioners court alleging violations of the TOMA and requesting that copies of the closed 
meeting recordings be made available to him. The district court dismissed Riley’s claims and 
Riley appealed the decision. 
 
The Austin Court of Appeals stated that the prohibition against filing suit against a government 
entity does not apply when the legislature has waived the entity’s immunity. The TOMA waives 
immunity for violations of the TOMA and authorizes suits against governmental entities. The 
court concluded that the district court erred in dismissing Riley’s claims, but also held that the 
declaratory judgment action Riley sought was redundant of the relief sought under the 
TOMA.  The Austin Court of Appeals denied the motion for rehearing, and the Texas Supreme 

2 
 



Court denied the petition for review.  The case has been remanded back to the district court, and 
the Texas Municipal League will continue to monitor this case.  
 
The Third Court’s opinion in York v. Texas Guaranteed Student Loan Corp. can be found here 
and the Riley v. Commissioners Court of Blanco County opinion can be found here.    
 
 

CITY OF SAN ANTONIO ASKS  
TEXAS SUPREME COURT TO REVIEW SUBSTANDARD 

STRUCTURE DECISION 
 

Relying on City of Dallas v. Stewart (a 2012 opinion of the Texas Supreme Court), the Fourth 
Court of Appeals has recently held that a takings claim could be filed at any point “in the same 
proceeding” as the appeal of an administrative nuisance determination.  Wu v. City of San 
Antonio, No. 04-10-00836-CV, 2013 WL 4084721 at *5 (Tex. App.—San Antonio Aug. 14, 
2013). This is a troubling conclusion. 
  
City attorneys had believed that statements made by the Texas Supreme Court in City of Dallas 
v. Stewart operated as an assurance to cities that they would not be left vulnerable to a flood of 
takings litigation. In Stewart, the Court recognized that state law provides a “narrow thirty-day 
window for seeking review” of an administrative nuisance determination. Many city attorneys 
believed this and other statements by the Stewart court meant that a city could continue to use 
the city council or building and standards commission abatement process, and protect itself from 
a takings claim by simply waiting until the 30-day window for appeal to pass before demolishing 
a structure. The Fourth Court’s holding in Wu v. City of San Antonio undermines this assurance. 
 
The City of San Antonio has asked the Texas Supreme Court to review the Fourth Court’s 
holding, and to provide a bright-line rule as to when a takings claim may be brought. TML and 
the Texas City Attorneys Association filed an amicus brief with the Court on December 17, 
2013, in support of the city’s petition for review. 
 
Information about the City of Dallas v. Stewart case is available here. The Fourth Court’s 
opinion in Wu v. City of San Antonio is available here. 
 
 
 
 

TML member cities may use the material herein for any purpose. No 
other person or entity may reproduce, duplicate, or distribute any part 
of this document without the written authorization of the Texas 
Municipal League. 

3 
 

http://www.search.txcourts.gov/SearchMedia.aspx?MediaVersionID=5e4941f5-2ae6-42c1-9d24-736d2dd3b51c&coa=coa03&DT=Opinion&MediaID=1ad9f942-b8f2-493c-8354-11be5f2ea583
http://www.search.txcourts.gov/SearchMedia.aspx?MediaVersionID=27dc21df-7077-4a8f-a9bd-7ebadce1525a&coa=coa03&DT=Opinion&MediaID=f85a74ad-5331-4eb8-9ac8-4d5f5b72ed9e
http://www.tml.org/legis_updates/legis_update021712a_dallasVstewart
http://www.search.txcourts.gov/SearchMedia.aspx?MediaVersionID=d318c705-57e7-4415-a7fe-22abdbd4ebd7&MediaID=ccfb0b7b-83e3-4b24-a9db-9fc2bb524b69&coa=%22%20+%20this.CurrentWebState.CurrentCourt%20+%20@%22&DT=Opinion



